
1 
 

WORCESTER TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 
WORCESTER TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY HALL 

FAIRVIEW VILLAGE, WORCESTER, PA 
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 18, 2015 – 7:30 P.M. 

 
CALL TO ORDER by Chairman Bustard at 7:33 P.M. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ATTENDANCE 
PRESENT:  
ARTHUR C. BUSTARD  [X] 
SUSAN G. CAUGHLAN  [X] 
STEPHEN C. QUIGLEY [X] 
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
The Conditional Use Hearing for Willow Creek Farms, LP will be held tonight.  The Conditional Use 
Hearings for Center Square Golf Course will be held on Wednesday, April 1 and Thursday, April 2 at 7:00 
PM. 
 
MOTIONS & RESOLUTIONS 
A motion was made by Supervisor Caughlan, seconded by Supervisor Quigley, and approved by all to 
dispense with the reading of and approve the minutes as written from February 18, 2015. 
 
James Mollick, Worcester, suggested that the minutes be tabled due to missing pages of the minutes.  
 
The Board agreed to table the minutes.   
 
Treasurer’s Report 
Chairman Bustard presented the Treasurer’s Report for February 2015.   
General Fund                $80,815.28       
State                               $(23,947.85) 
Capital Reserve            $2,715.93     
Sewer Fund                   (131,402.87) 
 
A motion was made by Supervisor Caughlan, seconded by Supervisor Quigley, and approved by all to 
approve the Treasurer’s Report for February 2015. 
 
Dr. Mollick commented on the Township's year to date legal services and the amounts paid to date.  He 
confirmed with the Treasurer that most of the Solicitor's expenses are in the general fund. 
 
Payment of the Bills to the Township 
A motion by Supervisor Caughlan, seconded by Supervisor Quigley, and approved by all to make a 
payment of the bills to the Township in the amount of $554, 068.56. 
 
Dr. Mollick commented on the following topics: Specific legal bills, the Right to Know process, litigation 
process, redactions, the appeal process in the office of open records, tax payer dollars, and 
transparency. 



2 
 

Supervisor Quigley inquired about the Lower Gwynedd bill.  Mr. Garrity clarified that no billing took 
place for the Lower Gwynedd Right to Know request at Worcester.  All that was charged was for an 
email to Lee for clarification of this matter originally. 
 
Jim Phillips, Worcester, commented on the Right to Know process, transparency in the Township, 
executive sessions, and legal procedures in the Township. 
 
Mr. Garrity explained that no one billed regarding the Lower Gwynedd invoice matter.  He further 
explained the executive session process. 
 
Mr. Phillips addressed the executive session process and how that should be handled. 
 
Toll Bros. Preserve at Worcester – Exporting of Topsoil 
Joseph Nolan, Township Engineer, explained the waiver request.  He cited the specific section of the 
code in Subdivision and Land Development. 
 
Supervisor Quigley commented that most of the dirt has always remained in the Township. 
He thinks the soil should stay and have a nice soil base for lawns and vegetation to grow. 
 
Supervisor Caughlan is in agreement with Steve.  A motion was made by Supervisor Caughlan, seconded 
by Supervisor Quigley, and approved by all to deny Toll Brothers’ request to begin the process of 
exporting topsoil from the development site at the Preserve at Worcester.  
 
Dr. Mollick inquired as to how long the ordinance has been in place.  He feels that this is oversight.   
 
Chairman Bustard explained that the Township is aware of dirt removal through site visits, engineering 
inspections, and investigations. 
 
Dr. Mollick inquired where the topsoil will be stored, Stony Creek’s Topsoil process, and further 
addressed the monitoring of topsoil removal.   
 
Supervisor Quigley further explained that Toll Brothers requested this waiver. 
 
Maryellen Shore, Worcester, stated that large amounts of topsoil being removed from the site would be 
eventually noticed.  She is in agreement with that the topsoil should not be removed. 
 
Lee Mangan, Township Manager, addressed the Hickory Hill Sewer matter.  He and Mr. Nolan will be 
updating the Board at the next business meeting. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
Zoning Hearing Board Update 
The Zoning Hearing Board scheduled for March 24, 2015 has been cancelled – due to no new 
applications. 
 
Subdivision and Land Development Update 
No new applications at this time. 
 
 



3 
 

ENGINEER'S REPORT 
2015 Materials and Equipment Bid  
The bid will open on April 8, 2015, which will be awarded at the April 15, 2015 business meeting.  
 
The Public Works Salt Building  
The building is currently undergoing survey work.  The project is anticipated to be completed by the end 
of the year. 
 
Chairman Bustard inquired if the salt bin was adequately stocked this year.  Mr. Mangan explained that 
the winter season is not over and that the Township will need these facilities. 
 
Mr. Nolan explained that one of the features of the building will accomodate a brine system which is 
extremely effective in prepping the roads. 
 
2015 Annual Road Improvement Program 
Mr. Nolan explained that this contract is done every year for repaving and repair of roads.  He has been 
working with Bob D’Hulster, Township Road Master, to further accomplish this matter.  There will be 
heavy repair needed for certain roads that are dangerous. 
 
Zacharias Pedestrian Bridge Award 
Mr. Nolan explained that the bridge that will be installed.  This is part of the grant program for $200,000.  
The low bid was submitted by Signature Bridges. He saw other bridges that were made in other states to 
get better acquainted with the bridge product, and recommended that the Board make a motion to 
accept Signature Bridges bid. 
 
Supervisor Caughlan inquired about the construction of the bridge. 
 
Supervisor Quigley inquired about the chemically treated wood and how that would affect the 
environment.  Mr. Nolan explained that the chemicals used are intended for water use and are safe. 
 
A motion was made by Supervisor Caughlan, seconded by Supervisor Quigley, and approved by all to 
approve the Zacharias Pedestrian Bridge bid award to Signature Bridge. 
 
Mr. Phillips inquired what would be allowed to go across the bridge.  Mr. Nolan explained this is OHSA 
compliant.   
 
Mr. Phillips inquired if horses and pedestrians would be allowed.  Mr. Nolan stated yes.  
 
Mr. Phillips inquired how the bridge would be cleaned. 
 
Mr. Nolan further explained that the wood would be treated and is 8 feet wide. 
 
Mr. Quigley brought up the issue of potholes in the Township.  Chairman Bustard confirmed that 
Township staff is working expeditiously to fill potholes in the Township. 
 
Mr. Mangan further addressed the Hickory Hill matter and that a cost analysis needs to be obtained.  He 
requested a formal motion from the Board to have the project bid, which will provide accurate numbers 



4 
 

for project cost.    He suggested that correspondence be sent to the Hickory Hill area notifying them of 
this. 
 
A motion was made by Supervisor Quigley, seconded by Supervisor Caughlan, and approved by all to 
proceed with bid specifications.  
 
Heidi Alderfer, Worcester, commented that the Hickory Area is being blindsided.  She has requested to 
be informed by the Board what the cost is, and inquired as to how many letters have been sent.  Mr. 
Mangan replied that between 2 to 3 letters have been sent.  
 
Chairman Bustard and Supervisor Caughlan responded to Ms. Alderfer’s questions.  She requested that 
better communication be given to the Hickory Hill community. 
 
Dr. Mollick commented on Hickory Hill sewer project and how the Hickory Hill community has been 
treated.  He inquired about the litigation terminating six weeks ago and why this process was delayed 
for six weeks. 
 
Charles Watson, Worcester, inquired as to the exact cost.  He asked that the tapping fee be dropped.   
Chairman Bustard said the Board will consider such.  He asked what a tapping fee is. 
 
Mr. Nolan explained that the tapping fee is mandated by the state and is based by the methodology as 
specified by the law.  It is the cost to purchase the specific capacity that someone will utilize from the 
Waste Water Treatment Plant.  A cost per gallon is established per the servicing plant. 
 
Supervisor Caughlan verified that the current Valley Green Wastewater Treatment plant was upgraded 
recently by two million dollars. 
 
Mr. Nolan further explained how a tapping fee is derived. 
 
Steve Rock, Worcester, thanked the Board of Supervisors for their service.  He commented on the 537 
plan that was done in 1997.  He commented that Fairview Village did not have to pay for their tapping 
fees, the operating fees, and the overall communication process. 
 
Mr. Phillips commented on the Hickory Hill project, the tapping fees, DEP's involvement in the creation 
of Hickory Hill Subdivision, the RFP process, and cable access of the meetings of which he requested 
back in 2005, and how residents need to be informed. 
 
Supervisor Quigley inquired as to what Mr. Nolan thinks regarding the motion.  
 
Supervisor Caughlan requested to hold this off.  Chairman Bustard said to send a letter to the residents 
about bidding the matter, and another letter when the RFPs are received, both should include the 
meeting schedule. 
 
Mrs. Alderfer requested that the Board take the summer vacation schedule into account when 
informing the residents. 
 
A motion was made by Supervisor Caughlan, seconded by Chairman Bustard, and approved by all to 
send an informational packet to the Hickory Hill Sewer residents. 



5 
 

 
 
 
SOLICITOR’S REPORT 
Mr. Phillips mentioned the sewer needs of Worcester Residents that need to get capacity from Lower 
Providence, agreements are being drafted for the IBEW and the former tack shop. 
 
Fred Oskanian, Worcester, asked why he cannot tie in right now.  Mr. Garrity explained that would be 
extremely expensive and the Lower Providence Sewer Authority will not consider this project at this 
time. 
 
James Garrity, Township Solicitor, explained the process of connecting to sewer.     
 
Supervisor Quigley commented on Bruce Foulke's request for public sewer.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Conditional Use Hearing for Willow Creek Farms, LP. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS   
Supervisor Quigley commented on the placement of bases at the baseball fields and if they’re safe. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Mr. Phillips commented on the Willow Creek Conditional Use application and the agenda. 
 
Dr. Mollick commented on the Farm Board Procedures, Chairman Bustard and Supervisor Quigley 
membership on the Farm Board, Whole Foods, and the Farm Board’s role in Worcester Township's 
application process. 
 
Chairman Bustard commented that the laws were upheld by the Farm Board. 
 
Supervisor Quigley commented on the Farm Board’s process.  Everyone was talking at the same time. 
 
Dr. Mollick commented on the Right to Know process.  Mr. Garrity further explained Lower Gwynedd’s 
bill. 
 
Mrs. Shore commented on the Farm Board.   

 
ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business brought before this Board, Chairman Bustard adjourned the regularly 

scheduled meeting at 10:23 pm. 

       Respectfully submitted: 

   

   

  Eunice C. Kriebel, Assistant Secretary 
 



6 
 

 
 


